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Ri chard M Rawl i ngs, Spokane, Washington, for
t he respondent

Bef or e: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Proceedi ngs

These proceedi ngs concern proposals for assessnment of civil
penalties filed by the petitioner against the respondent on
January 18, 1978, pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S. C. 0820(a), charging the
respondent with a total of five alleged mne safety violations
i ssued pursuant to the Act and inplenenting safety standards.
Respondent filed tinmely answers in the proceedi ngs and requested
a hearing regarding the proposed civil penalties initially
assessed for the alleged violations. A hearing was held in
Spokane, Washi ngton, on July 10, 1979. The parties waived the
filing of posthearing briefs, and the argunents presented on the
record at the hearing have been considered by ne in the course of
t hese deci si ons.

| ssues

The issues presented in these proceedings are (1) whether
respondent has violated the provisions of the Act and
i npl enenting regul ations as alleged in the proposal for
assessnment of civil penalties,
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and, if so, (2) the appropriate civil penalties that should be

assessed for each proven citation, based upon the criteria set

forth in section 110(i) of the Act. Additional issues raised by
the parties are discussed in the course of these decisions.

In determ ning the amount of a civil penalty assessment,
section 110(i) of the Act requires consideration of the foll ow ng
criteria: (1) the operator's history of previous violations, (2)
t he appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business
of the operator, (3) whether the operator was negligent, (4) the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, (5) the
gravity of the violation, and (6) the denonstrated good faith of
the operator in attenpting to achi eve rapid conpliance after
notification of the violation

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, P.L.
95-164, 30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq.

2. Section 110(a) of the Act, 30 U.S.C [820(a).

3. The Commission's rules and procedures concerning m ne
heal th and safety hearings, 29 CFR 2700.1 et seq.

Sti pul ations

The parties stipulated as to the Conmi ssion's jurisdiction
and the fact that the citations in both dockets were in fact
i ssued on the dates indicated and that they were duly served on
the respondent. Further, the parties stipulated that the
respondent is a small-to-nmediumsized sand and gravel operator
has no prior history of violations under the Act, and that the
i mposition of civil penalties will not inpair its ability to
remain in business (Tr. 5-6).

DI SCUSSI ON
Docket No. DENV 79-221

The proposal for assessment of civil penalty filed in this
docket pertains to two citations issued by MSHA i nspector James
Arnol di on August 9, 1978, citing the respondent with violations
of the provisions 30 CFR 56.14-1. CGCitation No. 347026 charges
that the tail pulley of the conveyor fromthe culvert-Ilined
tunnel was not guarded. Citation No. 347027 charges that the
tail pulley at the concrete-lined tunnel was al so not guarded.

Petitioner's Testi nony and Evi dence
MSHA i nspector Janmes Arnoldi testified that the Yardley Pit

Mne is a sand and gravel operation where material is mned by a
stationary
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dragline and transported by conveyor belts to the crusher and
screening areas and fromthere to the stockpile. He confirned
that he inspected the tail pulley of the belt conveyor fromthe
culvert-lined tunnel, which is a covered, corrugated nmetal short
tunnel. The tail pulley itself was a novable machine part and it
was not guarded. He believed a person could possibly come in
contact with the unguarded tail pulley, and that that person
woul d be soneone who woul d be there for cleanup or maintenance.
The dragline operator would not, however, |eave his machine. The
i nspector indicated that if someone were caught in the unguarded
pul l ey, he could lose an armor |leg or be mangl ed. The pulley
was about 18 inches or 2 feet off the ground and a wal kway was

al ongsi de the conveyor. The unguarded pulley was in plain sight
and the operator should have known about the condition

Enpl oyees were not working in the area when he observed the
condition. The condition was abated within the tinme permtted
(Tr. 7-11).

On cross-exam nation, Inspector Arnoldi indicated that the
operator does instruct enployees not to enter the tunnel area
while the belts are in operation (Tr. 12). In response to bench
guesti ons concerning the abatenent, petitioner's counse
stipulated that the citation was termnated within the tine
specified (Tr. 13). Inspector Arnoldi stated that while the
operator does not permt his enployees to work in or around
unguarded pulley areas, the fact is that enployees do not al ways
heed these instructions and are constantly getting caught in
unguar ded pul | eys, and MSHA acci dent reports bear this out (Tr.
14).

I nspector Arnoldi testified that he considers an unguarded
pulley to be a hazard if there is access to it and a person can
reach into it or get caught in it, even though an operator has
| ock-out procedures and instructs enpl oyees not to go near the
equi prent while it is in operation. The inspector stated that
the I ocation of the tail pulley in question was at a place where
enpl oyees woul d not normally pass by on a regular basis, that it
was |l ocated in an isolated place, and that the area in question
was part of the material transportation system Furthernore, no
one is stationed there at all tinmes to maintain the belt. He was
i nfluenced to issue the citation because he is obligated to
enforce the standard and the fact that MSHA' s accident reports
i ndi cate that people are being caught in pulleys. The location
of the pulley would dictate when he would cite a violation of
section 56.14-1 (Tr. 14-16). Based on his observation of the
tail pulley and his experience, if an enployee were in the area
he m ght come in contact with the unguarded tail pulley and be
injured (Tr. 16).

Regardi ng the unguarded tail pulley at the concrete-Ilined
tunnel, Inspector Arnoldi confirned that it was unguarded and
t hat enpl oyees nornmally do not work in the area. O eanup and
mai nt enance enpl oyees coul d possibly conme in contact with the
unguarded tail pulley. This pulley was also 18 inches to 2 feet
of f the ground and presented the
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sane hazard as the other citation. The |ikelihood of an acci dent
was very small, but the result would be the sane as the other
citation, and the condition was in plain view (Tr. 17-18).

Al t hough the inspector agreed that the tunnel was in a renote
area, the shift foreman or personnel in that area should have
been aware of the unguarded pulley (Tr. 20).

In response to bench questions, Inspector Arnoldi indicated
that while the m ne had been previously inspected by MESA, his
i nspection was his first tinme at the m ne under MSHA. Al t hough
M. Arnoldi indicated that his inspector's statenment nust have
been based on his | ooking at previous inspection reports
i ndi cating previous citations of the sane safety standard, he has
never cited the sane standard since this was his first inspection
of the mine. He cited the violations because at sone tine sonmeone
woul d go to the location of the exposed pulleys and possibly get
caught in them (Tr. 22). The pinch points would be sone 6 inches
i nside the belt frames, and while the franes provided sone
protection, they were inadequate for this purpose (Tr. 23).

Respondent' s Testi nony and Evi dence

Ri chard M Raw i ngs, safety director, testified that he
acconpani ed I nspector Arnoldi during his inspection, and he
di scussed the citations and the pulleys with M. Arnoldi. Wth
regard to the culvert-lined tunnel, M. Rawlings indicated that
the entrance was was protected with a chain and a "Do Not Enter”
sign, and enpl oyees were instructed not to enter the tunnel while
the belt was in operation. He indicated that this was
satisfactory to other MESA inspectors during prior inspections.
As for the second tunnel, there was no chain or sign at that
| ocation, but he could not recall discussing this |location with
M. Arnold (Tr. 25-27).

On cross-exam nation, M. Rawings indicated that if someone
were standing right next to the pulleys, he could see that they
were not guarded. A foreman is in charge of the tunnel facility
and managenent personnel, including hinself, would be responsible
for inspecting the equipnent to see that pulleys are guarded. He
did not believe the conditions cited were dangerous, and
i ndi cated that the conpany had previously been cited for
violations of the sane standard at other facilities. |If an
enpl oyee di sregarded instructions and performed nai ntenance or
other work while the pulley was noving, he could get hurt (Tr.
27-29).

In response to bench questions, M. Raw ings stated that
some pulley locations at the Yardley Pit Mne |ocation are
guarded and the circunstances of their |ocation, including
whet her there is a lot of foot traffic nearby, dictate whether
guards should be installed and he nmakes these determ nations
hinsel f. The factors he considers include how often enpl oyees
are required to be in the area and
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whet her chains or signs are posted (Tr. 30). Wre nesh guards
were fabricated and installed to abate the citations. The tai
pul | eys are greased once a week, and once every nonth or two
material is cleaned out of the pulleys. Enployees are not in the
area when the belts are running. Geasing is done before the
belts are started and cleanup is done while the belts are off.
There is no standard procedure or |ock-out systemwhen this work
is done. If sonmeone were cleaning the belt while it was running,
they could be in violation of conpany rules, and he did not know
whet her greasing is done while the belt is running (Tr. 31-33).
The pulleys at the other end of the belt are 20 feet high where
the material dunps off the end of the belt; there is no wal kway
there, and they are not guarded (Tr. 31).

Petitioner's Argunents

Petitioner argued that the pulleys cited were in fact not
guarded, and contrary to the ones at the other end of the belts,
they could be contacted by persons in the area. Although the
chances of someone contacting themmay be renote, the standard
speaks in terms of "may be contacted,” and in the circunstances
presented here, the chances are not so renote that the term " may
be contacted” loses its meaning (Tr. 34).

Respondent ' s Ar gunent

Respondent argues that the culvert-lined tunnel was guarded
by a chain and sign and that enpl oyees are instructed not to
enter the area. Furthernore, the inspector stated that the
chances of an accident occurring at this location were renote or
i nprobable. As for the concrete-lined tunnel, while there was no
chain or sign, two boards were bl ocking the entrance. Although
one person does go to the tunnel once a week to grease the
pul l eys, no one is there when the belt is running (Tr. 35-36).
Respondent indi cated that guards woul d have been provided if the
i nspector had pointed out the need for them but respondent
sinmply did not feel that guards were required because of the
| ocations of the pulleys (Tr. 42).

Docket No. DENV 79-220

Petitioner noved to dismss Citation No. 347030, August 16,
1978, 30 CFR 56.14-1, on the ground that it could not sustain its
burden of proof as to the fact of violation. The notion was
granted and the petition for assessnent of civil penalty as to
that alleged violation is dismssed (Tr. 44).

The two rermaining citations are as foll ows:

Citation No. 347209, August 16, 1978, 30 CFR 56. 14-1,
charges that "the guard on the "V belt drive at the raw crusher
was not adequate. It did not extend | ow enough to protect
personnel fromthe pinch point."
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Citation No. 347031, August 16, 1978, 30 CFR 56.12-32, charges
that "the electric notor inside the long concrete |ined conveyor
tunnel did not have a cover plate."

Petitioner's Testi nony and Evi dence

I nspector Arnoldi confirnmed that he inspected the Fort
Wight facility in August 1978, and he described the operation as
a sand and gravel pit where materials were | oaded with end
| oaders, transported to a hopper, and then fed on a conveyor for
transportation to a crusher where it is sized and transported by
belts to various stockpiles. The V-belt raw crusher was not
adequat el y guarded because it did not come down | ow enough to
cover the drive pinch point. The belt and pulley was a novabl e
machi ne part. The crusher operator worked in the area and he
woul d be in danger of getting caught in the pinch point. A
wal kway was al ongside the pulley within a few inches fromthe
unguar ded novi ng machi ne part. Al though he could not recall how
hi gh off the ground the pinch point was | ocated, he would
estimate it was 2 or 3 feet and not overhead. The respondent
shoul d have known the pull ey was unguarded because supervisors
were in the area and the area was in the open at the main
crusher. The citation was abated within the allotted tinme and if
someone were caught in the pinch point, they could get their arm
or leg mangled or torn off (Tr. 44-47). The pull wheel for the
V-belt drive was guarded, but the bottom of the drive wheel
where the pinch point was | ocated, was not (Tr. 48).

In response to bench questions, Inspector Arnoldi indicated
that an 8- to 10-inch area was unguarded and that the crusher
operator would be traveling back and forth in the area severa
times during a shift, and the wal kway was al ongsi de the pulley
just inches away. He observed the crusher operator there at the
time the citation issued and the crusher was running. Abatenent
was achieved by installing a screen over the exposed pulley area
(Tr. 49-51).

Regardi ng the mi ssing cover plate citation, |nspector
Arnoldi confirmed that the nmotor in question did not have a cover
pl ate. The notor was sone 2 feet |long and 18 inches high. The
nmotor junction box cover was m ssing and sonmeone coul d possibly
have gotten into it and this posed a shock hazard in the event of
poor splicing. The uncovered area was 4 inches by 4 inches, and
the wires inside the box were spliced, insulated, and w apped.
The insul ati on woul d not wear out and there was no danger to
exposed insulated wires. The danger presented was the
possibility of someone working around the exposed box and getting
a hand tool in the open box and breaking the splices or
contacting the conductor. The box was in plain view, supervisors
were in the area, and the condition should have been observed.

He saw no one working in the area, but sonebody woul d have
occasion to work there cl eaning, greasing, or performng
mai nt enance usi ng a shovel,
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grease gun, or water to wash out the tunnel and this would add to
t he shock hazard. A cover was put on the box within the tinme
fixed for abatement (Tr. 57-55).

Respondent' s Testi nony and Evi dence

Respondent presented pictures of the | ocation and equi pment
which were cited (Exhs. R1 and R 2; Tr. 58). M. Rawings
stated that he believed the guard which was installed on the
V-belt was adequate. Although sonmeone could get their pants'
| egs caught in the bottom pulley, they would have to be on their
knees to get an armor hand caught. The violation was abated the
same afternoon that it was issued and the area in question was
not an area where people wal ked through (Tr. 60).

As for the cover plate, M. Rawings stated it too was
abated the same afternoon and that enpl oyees were not exposed to
any hazard since they would have to break the insulation on the
splices to be exposed to any hazard (Tr. 60-61).

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
Docket No. DENV 79-221-PM
Fact of Violation--Citation Nos. 347026 and 347027, 30 CFR 56.14-1

Respondent is charged with two violations of the provisions
of 30 CFR 56.14-1, which reads as follows: "Mandatory. GCears;
sprockets; chains; drive, head, tail, and takeup pulleys;
flywheel s; couplings; shafts; sawbl ades; fan inlets; and simlar
exposed novi ng machi ne parts which may be contacted by persons,
and which may cause injury to persons, shall be guarded.”

As | previously stated in a recent decision concerning the
guardi ng requi rements of section 56.14-1, Massey Sand and Rock
Conmpany, Docket No. DENV 78-575-PM (June 18, 1979), petition for
di scretionary review denied, July 27, 1979, | believe that when
an inspector cites a violation of this section of the mandatory
standards, it is incunbent on himto ascertain all of the
pertinent factors which led himto conclude that in the normal
course of his work duties at or near such exposed machi ne parts,
an enployee is likely to come into contact with such exposed
parts and be injured if such parts are not guarded. Here, it
seens obvious to me fromthe inspector's testinony in support of
the citations, that he relied chiefly on the fact that a person
comng in contact with such unguarded nachi ne parts coul d
possi bly be injured, and that conclusion was based on certain
MSHA acci dent reports which apparently reflect that enpl oyees who
are caught in unguarded pulleys are in fact injured. Wile
accept the general proposition that a person who becones
entangl ed in an unguarded machine part is likely to be injured,
this conclusion sinply begs the
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guestion as to whether a specific pulley location in a mne is
required to be guarded pursuant to the requirenents of section

56.14-1. In this regard, petitioner conceded on oral argunent
that the key words of the regulatory |anguage, "nmay be
contacted,” is critical to any determ nation as to whether the

standard has been violated. As | construe that |anguage, it
means that on a case-by-case basis, petitioner nust establish
that the unguarded area in question, by its location and
proximty to the com ngs and goi ngs of mne personnel, exposes
themto the hazard or danger of being caught in the unguarded
pulley. In ny view, this question can only be determn ned by
consi deration of the prevailing circunstances at the time the
citation issued.

Wth regard to the unguarded tail pulley at the
culvert-lined tunnel (G tation No. 347026), the inspector
testified that the equi pnent was part of the material
transportation systemand that it was | ocated in an isolated area
wher e enpl oyees would not nornmally pass by on a regul ar basis.
The respondent's defense is that the tunnel was protected by a
chain and a "Do Not Enter" sign, and that enployees are
instructed not to enter the tunnel while the belt is noving.
Respondent al so pointed out that the unguarded pulleys at the
other end of the belts are |ocated sonme 20 feet high where
materi al dunps off the end of the belt, and since there is no
wal kway there, they are apparently "guarded by |ocation” and no
guards are required. As for the unguarded tail pulley in the
concrete-lined tunnel, respondent conceded that it was not
protected by a chain or a sign.

The inspector indicated that the exposed unguarded pulley
pi nch point areas were sonme 18 inches to 2 feet off the ground,
adj acent to wal kways, and sone 6 inches inside the belt franes.
Al t hough the inspector conceded that no one is stationed at the
unguarded tail pulley locations on a regular basis, Safety
Director Rawings candidly admtted that the tail pulleys are
greased once a week by enpl oyees and that materials are cl eaned
out of the pulleys on a nonthly basis. Although M. Raw ings
alluded to the fact tha the cleaning and greasing of the belts is
supposed to be done when the belts are not running and before
they are started up, he could not state whether greasing was ever
acconpl i shed while the belts were running. Furthernore, although
he confirmed that enployees were instructed not to be in the area
while the belts were running, he admtted that there is no
standard operating procedure or |ock-out system when work is
bei ng perfornmed on the belts and that enpl oyees who di sregarded
i nstructions and perforned mai ntenance or other work on the
pulley while it was noving could be injured. Under these
ci rcunmst ances, | conclude and find that the unguarded pull eys,
adj acent to a wal kway where nen obvi ously passed whil e performng
work on the belts and pulleys on a weekly and nonthly basis,
presented a hazard to those nen and were required to be guarded.
Since they were not, | conclude and find that the petitioner has
established the violations, and the citations are AFFI RVED
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Gavity

| believe that the question of gravity nust be determ ned on
the basis of the conditions or practices which existed at the
time the citations in question issued. General or specul ative
conclusions as to the hazards involved with respect to unguarded
pull ey locations sinply are not sufficient to justify a finding
that the conditions cited presented a grave threat to the safety
of mine personnel. On the facts presented here, the inspector
saw no one in the area of the unguarded pull eys, indicated that
no one is stationed there on a regular basis, and conceded t hat
the tunnel areas were sonewhat renote and that enpl oyees did not
pass through there on a regular basis. He also indicated that
t he chances of an accident were "very small." Respondent's
unrebutted testinmony is that one of the tunnels was chai ned off
and a "Do Not Enter" sign was posted, and while the other one was
not chai ned or posted, several boards bl ocked the entrance.
Under the circunstances presented with respect to the citations,
I cannot conclude that the conditions cited were serious, and
find that they were not.

Negl i gence

Both the inspector and Safety Director Rawl i ngs were of the
view that the | ocation of the unguarded pulleys would dictate
whet her they were required to be guarded pursuant to section
56.14-1. M. Raw ings indicated that sone pulley locations are
in fact guarded and that he is the person who deci des whet her a
particul ar | ocation should be guarded and his decision in this
regard is dictated by the circunstances presented, including
consi deration of whether there is a lot of foot traffic in the
area and how often enpl oyees are required to be at any given
| ocation. As an exanple of areas not required to be guarded, he
cited elevated pulley areas where there are no wal kways. On the
facts presented in this case, | find that M. Rawl i ngs knew or
shoul d have known that greasing and cl eanup were bei ng perforned
in the unguarded pull ey areas adjacent to wal kways, and while
enpl oyees may not be required to go to those areas frequently,
the fact is that those enpl oyees working in and around unguarded
pul | eys were exposed to a potential hazard, and | concl ude that
M. Raw i ngs shoul d have been aware of these circunstances.
Consequently, | conclude and find that the failure to guard the
| ocations cited resulted froma failure by the respondent to
exerci se reasonabl e care and that this constitutes ordinary
negl i gence.

Good Faith Conpliance

Abat enent was achi eved through the fabrication and
installation of wire mesh guards, and petitioner stipulated that
the citations were abated within the time fixed by the inspector
(Tr. 13).
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

Docket No. DENV 79-220-PM
Fact of Violation--Citation No. 347029, 30 CFR 56.14-1

Respondent is charged with a violation of the provision of
30 CFR 56. 14-1, which reads as follows: "Mandatory. Cears;
sprockets; chains; drive, head, tail, and takeup pulleys;
flywheel s; couplings; shafts; sawbl ades; fan inlets; and simlar
exposed novi ng machi ne parts which may be contacted by persons,
and which may cause injury to persons, shall be guarded.”

The inspector issued this citation because he believed that
t he guard whi ch had been installed on the raw crusher V-belt
drive was inadequate. He believed it was inadequate because the
exi sting guard did not extend | ow enough to cover the pinch point
at the pulley drive where an area approximately 8 to 10 i nches
remai ned unguarded. Exhibit R 1 is a picture of the V-belt drive
in question and it clearly shows the area of the existing guards
and the | ocation which was not guarded. The existing guards are
a conbi nation of a wire mesh screen and what appears to be a
pi ece of metal sheeting | ocated over and adjacent to the pulley
apparatus. The guard which was installed to abate the citation is
a piece of wire mesh screen which covers the entire belt drive
and pul | ey mechani sm

Section 56.14-1 requires, anong other things, that belt
drive, head, tail, and takeup pulleys, and "sim|ar exposed
nmovi ng machi ne parts which may be contacted by persons, and which
may cause injury" be guarded. Based on the evidence and
testinony adduced in these proceedings, | find and concl ude t hat
the V-belt drive location cited was in fact a pulley of the type
described by and within the neaning of the standard and was
required to be guarded to preclude persons fromcom ng in contact
with it and possibly being injured.

On the facts presented here, the inspector testified that
there was a danger of soneone getting caught in the unguarded
portion of the pulley in question. A walkway was | ocated sone
i nches away fromthe unguarded pulley and the crusher operator
woul d have occasion to wal k al ong the wal kway several tines
during the course of the shift, and at the time of the citation
he observed such an operator on duty in the area and the crusher
was operating. Respondent's defense is based on the fact that the
operator believed that the existing guard was adequate. However,
respondent's w tness, M. Rawl ings, conceded that soneone coul d
get their pants' |egs caught in the exposed pulley which was not
guarded. The fact that one would have to be on his knees for
this to occur is not controlling, and while it may indicate that
t he chances of an acci dent happening is sonewhat renote, it may
not serve as an absolute defense to the asserted violation
Since the pulley area was in



~1434

fact guarded to sone extent, | can only assune that the existing
guards were installed by the respondent out of recognition of the
fact that the pulley area did present a hazard, and that there
was a possibility of someone wal ki ng al ong the adj acent wal kway
coul d beconme entangled in the exposed pull ey which was not
guarded. In the circunstances, | conclude and find that the
pulley area cited was in fact not adequately guarded and that
petitioner has established a violation. Accordingly, the
citation is AFFI RMVED

Gavity

I find that the circunstances presented establishes that the
viol ati on was serious. The wal kway was inches fromthe exposed
unguarded pull ey area and the crusher operator has occasion to
wal k up and down that wal kway during the course of the shift, and
respondent candidly admitted that had he caught a pant's leg in
the pulley, he could have been injured.

Negl i gence

The inspector's testinony that the unguarded pull ey area was
unguarded and in plain sight to supervisors who may have been
there remains unrebutted. Furthernore, since portions of the
pul l ey were guarded to sone extent, | find tht the respondent was
on notice that the pulley presented a hazard since it seens
obvi ous that the existing guards were installed out of
recognition of that fact. | further conclude that the respondent
shoul d have been aware of the fact that the unguarded pulley area
adj acent and next to the wal kway presented a hazard and that
respondent's failure to install a guard in that area resulted in
its failure to exercise reasonable care and that this constitutes
ordi nary negligence due to the respondent's failure to correct an
unsafe condition which it knew or should have known exi sted.

Good Faith Conpliance

The citation issued on August 16, 1978, and the inspector
fixed the time for abatenent as August 21, 1978. Respondent's
testinmony reflects that the guard was installed on the afternoon
of the day the citation issued. | find that this indicates that
t he respondent exercised rapid abatenent in correcting the
condition and this fact has been considered by nme in assessing a
civil penalty for this citation

Fact of Violation--GCitation No. 347021, 30 CFR 56.12-32
Section 56.12-32 provides: "Mndatory. |Inspector and cover

pl ates on el ectrical equi pnent and juncti on boxes shall be kept
in place at all tinmes except during testing or repairs.™
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I find that the preponderance of the evidence adduced with
respect to this citation supports a finding of a violation of
section 56.12-32. Respondent did not dispute the fact that the
required cover plate was in fact not in place and its testinony
did not rebut the findings made by the inspector in this regard.
The citation is AFFI RVED

Gavity

Fromthe testinony and evi dence presented, | cannot concl ude
that the violation was serious. The inspector testified that the
uncovered area was sone 4 inches by 4 inches, and his concern was
t hat someone wor ki ng around the uncovered notor plate cleaning
with a shovel or greasing equipnent with a grease gun or ot her
hand tool s woul d sonmehow pl ace such tools in the uncovered plate
area, thereby breaking the insulation on the wires or contacting
the conductors. He saw no one in the area on the day of his
i nspection and the evidence establishes that the area is sonewhat
renote and not regularly traveled. He also testified that the
wires inside the junction box were spliced, wapped, and
i nsulated and there is no indication that the splicing or
i nsul ation were in other than good condition. Furthernore, he
i ndicated that there was no danger to any of the exposed
insulated wires and that the insulation was not likely to wear
out in the normal course of events.

I conclude that the possibility of soneone pl acing a shovel,
grease gun, or other tool into the small, exposed area of the
cover plate was highly unlikely. Furthernore, although the
tunnel area is washed out fromtine to tine with water, there is
no evidence that this was the case on the day in question, and
based on the totality of the conditions which prevailed on the
day in question, |I find that the condition cited was nonseri ous.

Negl i gence

The inspector testified that the uncovered plate in question
was in plain view and shoul d have been observed by supervisors
who were in the area. This testinony is unrebutted and I find
that the respondent shoul d have been aware of the fact that the
cover plate was not in place, and its failure to exercise
reasonabl e care in the circunstances constitutes ordinary
negl i gence.

Good Faith Conpliance

The citation issued on August 16, 1978, and the inspector
fixed August 21, 1978, as the abatenent time. Respondent's
testinmony indicates that the cover plate was replaced the
aft ernoon of August 16, and | find that the respondent achieved
rapi d conpliance once the citation issued, and this is reflected
in the penalty assessed by nme for the violation



~1436
Si ze of Business and Effect of Cvil Penalties on the
Respondent's Ability to Remain in Business

In both of these dockets, the parties stipul ated that
respondent is a small-to-nmediumsized sand and gravel operator
and that the inposition of civil penalties will not inpair its
ability to remain in business.

H story of Prior Violations

In both of these dockets, the parties stipulated that the
respondent has no previous history of violations, and this fact
has been considered by ne in assessing the civil penalties.

Concl usi on

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usions, the
following citations are AFFIRVED, and civil penalties are
assessed as foll ows:

Docket No. DENV 79-221-PM

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR Section Assessnent
347026 8/9/78 56.14-1 $25
347027 8/9/78 56. 14-1 25

Docket No. DENV 79-220-PM

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR Section Assessnent
347029 8/ 16/ 78 56.14-1 $50
347031 8/ 16/ 78 56. 12- 32 25

ORDER

The respondent is ORDERED to pay the civil penalties
assessed in these proceedings, as indicated above, in the tota
amount of $125 within thirty (30) days of the date of these
decisions. Citation No. 347030 (DENV 79-220) is DI SM SSED

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



